

AGENDA CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS, PROCUREMENT & CONTRACTING COMMITTEE MEETING WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2014 CUYAHOGA COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 1ST FLOOR 11:00 AM

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. ROLL CALL
- 3. PUBLIC COMMENT RELATED TO THE AGENDA
- 4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 18, 2013 MEETING

5. MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE

- a) <u>R2014-0009</u>: A Resolution authorizing a revenue generating Utility Agreement with City of Warrensville Heights for maintenance and repair of storm sewers, sanitary sewers and waterlines located in County Sewer District No. 5; authorizing the County Executive to execute the agreement and all other documents consistent with this Resolution; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective.
- b) <u>R2014-0010</u>: A Resolution authorizing an amendment to Contract No. CE10241-04, 06 with Sterling Telecom Office Building, LLC c/o Colliers International for lease of office space located at 1255 Euclid Avenue, Cleveland, for the period 9/1/1998 12/31/2012 to extend the time period to 12/31/2015 and for additional funds in the amount not-to-exceed \$498,300.12; authorizing the County Executive to execute the amendment and all other documents consistent with this Resolution; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective.

c) <u>O2014-0002</u>: An Ordinance amending Cuyahoga County Code Chapter 503: Small Business Enterprise Program Policies and Procedures to approve revised Cuyahoga County Small Business Enterprise Program Policies and Procedures, effective 2/15/2014; and declaring the necessity that this Ordinance become immediately effective.

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

- 7. OTHER PUBLIC COMMENT
- 8. ADJOURNMENT

*In accordance with Section 108.01 of the Cuyahoga County Code, complimentary parking in the Huntington Park Garage will be available for the public on any day when the Council or any of its committees holds meetings. Please see the Clerk to obtain a parking pass.



MINUTES

CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS, PROCUREMENT & CONTRACTING COMMITTEE MEETING WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2013 CUYAHOGA COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 1ST FLOOR 11:00 AM

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Jones called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Mr. Jones asked Assistant Deputy Clerk Carter to call the roll. Committee members Jones, Germana and Miller were in attendance and a quorum was determined. Committee members Conwell and Simon were absent from the meeting.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT RELATED TO THE AGENDA

No public comments were given.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 4, 2013 MEETING

A motion was made by Mr. Miller, seconded by Mr. Germana and approved by unanimous vote to approve the minutes of the December 4, 2013 meeting.

- 5. MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE
 - a) <u>R2013-0289</u>: A Resolution amending Resolution No. R2012-0025 dated 4/10/2012, which declared that public convenience and welfare requires resurfacing of Turney Road, by changing the termini from Sladden Avenue to Hathaway Road in the City of Garfield Heights to Warner Road to Hathaway Road in the Cities of Cleveland and Garfield

Heights, by changing the total estimated project cost from \$4,125,000.00 to \$4,925,000.00 and by authorizing the County Executive to enter into an agreement of cooperation with the City of Cleveland; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective.

Ms. Bonnie Teeuwen, Director of the Department of Public Works, addressed the Committee regarding Resolution No. R2013-0289. Discussion ensued.

Committee members asked questions of Ms. Teeuwen pertaining to the item, which she answered accordingly.

On a motion by Mr. Jones with a second by Mr. Germana, Resolution No. R2013-0289 was referred to the full Council agenda with a recommendation for passage under second reading suspension of the rules.

b) <u>R2013-0290</u>: A Resolution declaring that public convenience and welfare requires resurfacing of East 222nd Street from Tungsten Road to Euclid Avenue in the City of Euclid; total estimated project cost \$3,260,200.00; finding that special assessments will neither be levied nor collected to pay for any part of the County's costs of said improvement; authorizing the County Executive to enter into an agreement of cooperation with said municipality in connection with said project; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective.

Ms. Bonnie Teeuwen, Director of the Department of Public Works, addressed the Committee regarding Resolution No. R2013-0290. Discussion ensued.

Committee members asked questions of Ms. Teeuwen pertaining to the item, which she answered accordingly.

On a motion by Mr. Jones with a second by Mr. Germana, Resolution No. R2013-0290 was referred to the full Council agenda with a recommendation for passage under second reading suspension of the rules.

c) <u>R2013-0291</u>: A Resolution authorizing the appropriation of real property in connection with right-of-way plans as set forth in Plat No. M-4985 for improvement of Pleasant Valley Road/Bagley Road from Pearl Road to York Road in the Cities of Middleburg Heights and Parma; directing the County Executive to proceed with the acquisition of real property required for public highway purposes; authorizing the Fiscal Officer to issue the monetary warrant to be deposited with the Probate Court of Cuyahoga County in an amount that is equal to the fair market value of the property; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective:

- Parcel No(s): 1-WD & T Permanent Parcel No(s): 374-02-0019, 374-02-005, 374-02-092 and 374-02-094 Owner(s): McDonald's Corporation, a Delaware Corporation Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$21,175.00
- Parcel No(s): 29-T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 374-04-015
 Owner(s): L.F. & C.S. Rodecker
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$300.00
- Parcel No(s): 30-WD & T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 374-08-045
 Owner(s): M.J. & J.A. Kolk
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$300.00
- Parcel No(s): 57-T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 374-05-012
 Owner(s): R.J. & R.M. Scirpo
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$300.00
- 5) Parcel No(s): 119-T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-38-096
 Owner(s): J. Ordakowski
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$360.00
- 6) Parcel No(s): 146-WD & T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-11-005
 Owner(s): B.K. & P.A. Stapleton
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$470.00
- Parcel No(s): 161-WD, T & T1
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-29-007
 Owner(s): C.A. Poole
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$600.00
- 8) Parcel No(s): 162-WD & T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-30-041
 Owner(s): P. LaFrance
 Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$920.00
- Parcel No(s): 185-T
 Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-34-011
 Owner(s): J.M. Cornelius, M.M. Calderone, D.F. Calderone, G.E.
 Calderone, C.C. Burnet & M.A. Barnes

Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$300.00

10) Parcel No(s): 187-T
Permanent Parcel No(s).: 457-34-015
Owner(s): J. & C. Mancuso
Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$300.00

A motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mr. Germana and approved by unanimous vote to amend Resolution No. R2013-0291 by deleting "5) Parcel No(s): 119-T Permanent Parcel No(s): 457-38-096 Owner(s): J. Ordakowski Approved Appraisal (Fair Market Value Estimate): \$360.00."

Mr. Frederick Whatley, Land Deputy/Environmental Administrator and Mr. Jamal Husani, Chief Transportation/Traffic Engineer, addressed the Committee regarding Resolution No. R2013-0291. Discussion ensued.

Committee members asked questions of Mr. Whatley and Mr. Husani pertaining to the item, which they answered accordingly.

On a motion by Mr. Jones with a second by Mr. Germana, Resolution No. R2013-0291 was considered and approved by unanimous vote to be referred to the full Council agenda with a recommendation for passage under second reading suspension of the rules, as amended.

Mr. Germana requested to have his name added as an additional co-sponsor to Resolution No. R2013-0291.

d) <u>R2013-0292</u>: A Resolution making an award on RQ25834 to Cherandon Plaza, LLC in the amount of \$534,500.40 for lease of space for Auto Title Regional Office West, located at 27029 Brookpark Extension Road, North Olmsted, for the period 12/1/2013 - 11/30/2018; authorizing the County Executive to execute the contract and all other documents consistent with said award and this Resolution; and declaring the necessity that this Resolution become immediately effective.

Ms. Bonnie Teeuwen, Director of the Department of Public Works, addressed the Committee regarding Resolution No. R2013-0292. Discussion ensued.

Committee members asked questions of Ms. Teeuwen pertaining to the item, which she answered accordingly.

On a motion by Mr. Jones with a second by Mr. Miller, Resolution No. R2013-0292 was referred to the full Council agenda with a recommendation for passage under second reading suspension of the rules.

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

Mr. Jones congratulated Ms. Conwell on the birth of her new grandchild and thanked the Committee for their efforts and hard work during the year.

Mr. Miller thanked Mr. Jones for his work as Chair and announced that there will be a Finance & Budgeting Committee meeting on Monday, January 13, 2014 at 1:00 p.m.

Mr. Germana reported that he attended the NOACA meeting that was held on Friday, December 13, 2013.

7. OTHER PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comments were given.

8. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to discuss and on a motion by Mr. Miller with a second by Mr. Germana, the meeting was adjourned at 11:31 a.m., without objection.

County Council of Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Resolution No. R2014-0009

Sponsored by: County Executive	A Resolution authorizing a revenue	
FitzGerald/Department of Public	generating Utility Agreement with City of	
Works/Division of County	Warrensville Heights for maintenance and	
Engineer	repair of storm sewers, sanitary sewers	
	and waterlines located in County Sewer	
	District No. 5; authorizing the County	
	Executive to execute the agreement and	
	all other documents consistent with this	
	Resolution; and declaring the necessity	
	that this Resolution become immediately	
	effective.	

WHEREAS, the County Executive/Department of Public Works/Division of County Engineer has submitted an agreement with the City of Warrensville Heights for Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Waterline Maintenance; and

WHEREAS, the primary goal of this Agreement is to set forth the responsibilities of the respective parties under the Agreement as well as establish a rate which the County will charge the City of Warrensville Heights for services; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code Section 6117.02, the County may levy an assessment to pay the cost and expense of the maintenance and operation of such sewerage improvements, and

WHEREAS, there is no cost associated with this agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement is effective immediately upon approval; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary that this Resolution become immediately effective in order that critical services provided by Cuyahoga County can continue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the Cuyahoga County Council authorizes an Agreement with the City of Warrensville Heights for Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Waterline Maintenance.

SECTION 2. That the County Executive is authorized to execute an agreement with the City of Warrensville Heights and all documents consistent with this Resolution.

SECTION 3. It is necessary that this Resolution become immediately effective for the usual daily operation of the County and the reasons set forth in the preamble. Provided that this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least eight members of Council, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon the earliest occurrence of any of the following: (1) its approval by the County Executive through signature, (2) the expiration of the time during which it may be disapproved by the County Executive under Section 3.10(6) of the Cuyahoga County Charter, or (3) its passage by at least eight members of Council after disapproval pursuant to Section 3.10(7) of the Cuyahoga County Charter. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

SECTION 4. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of the Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

On a motion by _	, seconded by	, the foregoing Resolution was
duly adopted.		

Yeas:

Nays:

County Council President

Date

County Executive

Date

Clerk of Council

Date

First Reading/Referred to Committee: January 14, 2014 Committee(s) Assigned: <u>Public Works, Procurement & Contracting</u>

Journal CC013 _____, 2014

County Council of Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Resolution No. R2014-0010

Sponsored by: County Executive	A Resolution authorizing an amendment to	
FitzGerald/Department of Public	Contract No. CE10241-04, 06 with Sterling	
Works on behalf of Department	Telecom Office Building, LLC c/o Colliers	
of Public Safety and Justice	International for lease of office space located	
Services	at 1255 Euclid Avenue, Cleveland, for the	
	period 9/1/1998 - 12/31/2012 to extend the	
	time period to 12/31/2015 and for additional	
	funds in the amount not-to-exceed	
	\$498,300.12; authorizing the County	
	Executive to execute the amendment and all	
	other documents consistent with this	
	Resolution; and declaring the necessity that	
	this Resolution become immediately	
	effective.	

WHEREAS, the County Executive/Department of Public Works has recommended an amendment to Contract No. CE10241-04, 06 with Sterling Telecom Office Building, LLC, c/o Colliers International for lease of office space located at 1255 Euclid Avenue, Cleveland, for use by the Department of Public Safety and Justice Services for the period 9/1/1998 - 12/31/2012 to extend the time period to 12/31/2015 and for additional funds in the amount not-to-exceed \$498,300.12; and,

WHEREAS, the office space is used by the Department of Public Safety and Justice Services, Cuyahoga Emergency Communication System and Cuyahoga Regional Information System to provide critical and vital public safety services; and,

WHEREAS, this project is funded through 911 funds, grants and the General Fund; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary that this Resolution become immediately effective in order that critical services provided by Cuyahoga County can continue and to provide for the usual, daily operation of a County entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the Cuyahoga County Council hereby authorizes an amendment to Contract No. CE10241-04, 06 with Sterling Telecom Office Building, LLC, c/o Colliers International for lease of office space located at 1255 Euclid Avenue, Cleveland, for use by the Department of Public Safety and Justice Services

for the period 9/1/1998 - 12/31/2012 to extend the time period to 12/31/2015 and for additional funds in the amount not-to-exceed \$498,300.12.

SECTION 2. That the County Executive is authorized to execute all documents required in connection with said amendment.

SECTION 3. It is necessary that this Resolution become immediately effective for the usual daily operation of the County; the preservation of public peace, health, or safety in the County; and any additional reasons set forth in the preamble. Provided that this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least eight members of Council, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon the earliest occurrence of any of the following: (1) its approval by the County Executive through signature, (2) the expiration of the time during which it may be disapproved by the County Executive under Section 3.10(6) of the Cuyahoga County Charter, or (3) its passage by at least eight members of Council after disapproval pursuant to Section 3.10(7) of the Cuyahoga County Charter. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

SECTION 4. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of the Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

On a motion by duly adopted.	, seconded by, the forego	oing Resolution was
Yeas:		
Nays:		
	County Council President	Date
	County Executive	Date
	Clerk of Council	Date

First Reading/Referred to Committee: January 14, 2014 Committee(s) Assigned: <u>Public Works, Procurement & Contracting</u>

Journal CC013 _____, 2014

County Council of Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Ordinance No. O2014-0002

Sponsored by: County Executive	An Ordinance amending Cuyahoga County		
FitzGerald/Office of Procurement	Code Chapter 503: Small Business Enterprise		
& Diversity	Program Policies and Procedures to approve		
	revised Cuyahoga County Small Business		
	Enterprise Program Policies and Procedures,		
	effective 2/15/2014; and declaring the		
	necessity that this Ordinance become		
	immediately effective.		

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Executive/Office of Procurement & Diversity has submitted a revised Cuyahoga County Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program Policies and Procedures Manual, effective 2/15/14; and,

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga County Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program Policies and Procedures Manual was previously adopted by Council in Ordinance No. O2011-0054, as codified in Chapter 503 of the Cuyahoga County Code; and,

WHEREAS, the primary goal of the revised Cuyahoga County Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program Policies and Procedures is to ensure that, if the SBE Grievance Hearing Board has granted a waiver to a business with securities held in trust, the waiver is to continue in effect upon recertification provided that the ownership structure of the business remains unchanged; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary that this Ordinance become immediately effective in order that critical services provided by Cuyahoga County can continue and to provide for the usual, daily operation of a County entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO:

SECTION 1. Chapter 503 of the Cuyahoga County Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 503.01 Policies and Procedures Manual

The revised Cuyahoga County Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program Policies and Procedures Manual, attached to Ordinance No. O2014-0002 as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted effective 2/15/2014.

SECTION 2. It is necessary that this Ordinance become immediately effective for the usual daily operation of the County; the preservation of public peace, health,

or safety in the County; and any additional reasons set forth in the preamble. Provided that this Ordinance receives the affirmative vote of at least eight members of Council, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon the earliest occurrence of any of the following: (1) its approval by the County Executive through signature, (2) the expiration of the time during which it may be disapproved by the County Executive under Section 3.10(6) of the Cuyahoga County Charter, or (3) its passage by at least eight members of Council after disapproval pursuant to Section 3.10(7) of the Cuyahoga County Charter. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

SECTION 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

On a motion by	, seconded by	, the foregoing Ordinance was
duly enacted.		

Yeas:

Nays:

County Council President

Date

County Executive

Date

Clerk of Council

Date

First Reading/Referred to Committee: January 14, 2014 Committee(s) Assigned: <u>Public Works, Procurement & Contracting</u>

Journal ______, 20



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Revised effective February 15, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INTRODUCTION	2
II.	PROGRAM SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY	2
III.	THE OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT & DIVERSITY	3
IV.	CERTIFICATION	4
V.	ELIGIBILITY STANDARDS FOR SBE CERTIFICATION	5
VI.	OPERATIONAL CONTROL	6
VII.	MANAGERIAL CONTROL	6
VIII.	THE PURPOSE AND USE OF GOALS	7
IX.	EXCLUSIONS AND WAIVER OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH SBE GOAL	9
Χ.	REQUIREMENTS OF PRIME CONTRACTORS	10
XI.	GOOD FAITH EFFORTS	11
XII.	AWARD OF CONTRACTS	12
XIII.	MONITORING AND POST-AWARD REPORTING	12
XIV.	GRIEVANCE PROCESS	14
XV.	SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE	15
XVI.	TRAINING AND OUTREACH STRATEGIES	16
XVII.	GRADUATION BY SBE PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS	17
XVIII.	MENTOR–PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM	17
XIX.	BOND ASSISTANCE PROGRAM	18
XX.	SEVERABILITY	18
XXI.	DEFINITIONS	18

APPENDIX A CUYAHOGA COUNTY SBE BIDDER'S MANUAL

I. INTRODUCTION

<u>Policy Statement</u>: It is the policy of the Cuyahoga County to develop a strategic plan and establish administrative rules and procedures to insure that all businesses participate fully and fairly in Cuyahoga County's procurement and contract awards. In an effort to ameliorate the effects of past and present arbitrary barriers that Small Business Enterprises (SBEs) have in contracting with Cuyahoga County, Cuyahoga County hereby adopts this Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program.

<u>Promotion of Equal Opportunity</u>: No person shall be denied the benefit of, or otherwise discriminated against, on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, handicap, sex, age, marital status, or sexual orientation in connection with the award performance, and/or modification of a contract between a vendor or contractor and Cuyahoga County where said contract is paid for, in whole or in part, with monetary appropriations by Cuyahoga County.

<u>Program Objectives</u>: Accordingly, the objective of this SBE Program is to promote and encourage full and open competition in the procurement of goods and services by Cuyahoga County; encourage all Cuyahoga County personnel involved with procurement and contracting activities to maintain good faith efforts and appropriate purchasing procedures; to protect Cuyahoga County from becoming a passive participant in any unlawful discrimination; and to otherwise spur economic development in the public and private sectors of the Cuyahoga County economy.

II. PROGRAM SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY

The following categories provide an overview and summary of the nature and types of Cuyahoga County purchasing and contracting:

<u>Category A – Construction, Architectural and Engineering</u>: Includes any and all contracting relating to buildings, facilities and other erected structures on real estate of Cuyahoga County such as architectural engineering, new construction, rehabilitation, remodeling and repairs.

<u>Category B - Commodities</u>: Includes the purchase of all goods, equipment, food, office and other supplies, art, furniture, textbooks and other materials for education, and other tangible personal property not associated with the services identified in Categories A, B or C.

<u>Category C - Professional Services</u>: Includes the purchase of any or all services for which applicable selection criteria may require a Participant to possess a license or other certificate of competency such as accounting, auditing, landscape architecture, engineering, insurance, laboratory, legal, lifeguard, medical, dental, nursing, and student transportation.

<u>Category D – Business Services</u>: Includes the procurement of advertising, printing, nonconstruction repairs, janitorial services, training seminars and workshops, computer and information systems, security, shipping and mailing, microfiche and microfilm, courier, storage, travel, consulting, retail and other non-professional services.

III. THE OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT & DIVERSITY

The Office of Procurement and Diversity (OPD) develops, administers and enforces the SBE Program. OPD shall encourage equal business opportunities and achieve the policies and objectives of the SBE Program by:

- (1) Administering and enforcing Cuyahoga County policies;
- (2) Establishing written rules, regulations and procedures consistent with this SBE Program;
- (3) Publishing and making public said rules, regulations and procedures;
- (4) Maintaining outreach and assistance programs to promote equal contracting opportunities for SBEs that wish to contract with the Cuyahoga County;
- (5) Establishing, enhancing and maintaining relationships with agencies and stakeholders in the area;
- (6) Maintaining a current database of available SBEs and making this database accessible to interested parties;
- (7) Monitoring and collecting data and informational on the utilization of SBEs in Cuyahoga County's procurement activities;
- (8) Establishing and assessing the reasonableness of SBE participation goals for Cuyahoga County procurements;
- (9) Attending pre-bid/proposal conferences for all contract solicitations by Cuyahoga County;
- (10) Attending kick-off meetings for major projects;
- (11) Participating on evaluation panels for request for proposals and requests for qualifications;
- (12) Investigating written complaints related to the SBE Program;
- (13) Mediating payment disputes between prime contractors and SBE sub-contractors
- (14) Notifying affected parties in writing as to the right to review and appeal an adverse decision by OPD;
- (15) Monitoring Cuyahoga County's purchasing activities and determining compliance with SBE Program policies and procedures;
- (16) Preparing annual reports on the SBE Program;

- (17) Reviewing and determining whether a contractor or vendor has failed to implement its contractual agreements and commitments regarding this policy;
- (18) Developing and revising SBE Program policies and procedures to implement current best practices and maintaining records of SBE Program activities; and
- (19) Performing other tasks as may be required to fulfill the above-stated duties of OPD.

<u>Authority to Investigate Discriminatory Practices</u>: Should a Participant submit a written complaint of discrimination, OPD shall be authorized to submit the complaint for investigation to the pertinent county authority including but not limited to the County Executive, County Council, and the Inspector General or his/her designee. Further, such investigations may be initiated when OPD receives information, which provides a reasonable basis to believe that an individual contractor seeking to contract or contracting with Cuyahoga County may be engaging in public or private discriminatory conduct.

IV. CERTIFICATION

<u>Certification</u>: Certification is the process that ensures that a particular business may become a part of a pool of vendors identified for the purpose of increasing opportunities with respect to contracts awarded by Cuyahoga County.

All firms submitting applications for SBE consideration must be certified prior to submission of bid.

Applications for certification will be on standard forms provided by the SBE Program and will include, but will not be limited to, primary business location, evidence of ownership, control, operation, and experience. The application shall be in the form of an affidavit and shall be signed by the applicant; such signature to be notarized by an officer duly authorized to notarize signatures. All certified SBE firms will be required to update their listing continually including changes of addresses, telephone numbers and changes of ownership, control and operation.

The Director of Procurement & Diversity shall grant certification of an approved SBE for a period of one (1) year. The Director may grant a provisional SBE certification prior to specific bids or proposals. All companies must recertify their business on an annual basis on the anniversary of their certification. Should provisional certification be granted to a business and be awarded a prime contract and the provisional certification is later rescinded, that business is obligated to meet the SBE participation percentage goal of the original proposal or specifications.

If an SBE is denied certification on the basis of information submitted, the company cannot reapply for certification for a period of one (1) year from the date of the notice or denial, provided that such company shall have the right to appeal such denial and to be certified if such appeal is decided in its favor as provided herein. Certification records will be maintained by OPD for a period of five (5) years.

V. ELIGIBILITY STANDARDS FOR SBE CERTIFICATION

The following standards will be used to determine whether a firm is eligible to be certified as a Small Business Enterprise:

- 1. To become eligible for the SBE Program a Small Business Enterprise firm must demonstrate that it has been in continuous operation in the category or the related category for which it is requesting certification for one year, that majority ownership has at least one (1) year of work experience relevant to the business' certification category, that its annual gross revenues or its' total workforce are at or less than the amounts established by the Small Business Administration.
- 2. A business applying for certification as a SBE must establish that is has a physical presence located within the geographical limits of Cuyahoga County. Mailbox facilities or other similar arrangements alone do not constitute a physical presence.
- 3. SBE ownership and control shall be real, substantial and continuing and shall go beyond the "pro forma" ownership as reflected in the ownership document. The SBE owners shall share in the risks and profits commensurate with their ownership interest as demonstrated by an examination of the substance rather than form of arrangements.
- 4. SBE owners shall possess the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of the firm and to make the day-to-day as well as major decisions on matters of management, policy, and operation. The firm shall not be subject to any formal or informal restrictions that limit the customary discretion of the SBE owners. There shall be no restrictions through, for example, by-law provisions, partnerships, arrangements or charter requirements for cumulative voting rights or otherwise that prevent the SBE owners, without the cooperating or vote of any owner who is not listed, from making a business decision of the firm.
- 5. Where the actual management of the firm is contracted out to individuals other than the owner, those persons who have the ultimate power to hire and fire managers can, for the purpose of this part, are deemed to be controlling the business.
- 6. All securities that constitute ownership and/or control of a corporation shall be held directly by the owners. No securities held in trust, or by any guardian for a minor, shall be considered as held by an owner in determining the ownership or control of a corporation. If a business denied certification due to securities held in trust appeals to and is granted a waiver of this eligibility requirement by the SBE Grievance Hearing Board, then the waiver granted by the SBE Grievance Hearing Board shall remain in effect for that business provided that the ownership structure remains unchanged.
- 7. The contribution of capital or expertise by the owners to acquire their interest in the firm shall be real and substantial. Examples of insufficient contributions include a promise to contribute capital, a note payable to firm, or the mere participation as an employee, rather than as a manager.
- 8. In addition to the above standards, the SBE Program shall give special consideration to the following circumstances in determining eligibility for certification:

- a. Newly formed firms and firms whose ownership and/or control has changed since the date of the advertisement of the contract are closely scrutinized to determine the reasons for the timing of the formation of or change in the firm.
- b. A previous and/or continuing employer-employee relationship between or among present owners is carefully reviewed to ensure that the employeeowner has management responsibilities and capabilities discussed in this section.
- c. Any relationship between a Small Business Enterprise and a business which is not a Small Business Enterprise, which has an interest in the Small Business Enterprise is carefully reviewed to determine if the interest of the non-Small Business Enterprise conflicts with the ownership and control requirements of this section.

VI. OPERATIONAL CONTROL

OPD shall review the extent of "operational" control. The primary consideration in determining <u>operational control</u> and the extent to which the applicant actually operates the business will rest upon the peculiarities in the industry of which the business is a part. For example, for small contractors, it is reasonable to expect the applicant to be knowledgeable of all aspects of the business. This may not apply to large contractors who have the assets and personnel to specialize. Accordingly, in order to clarify the level of operational involvement, which an applicant must have in a business for it to be considered eligible, the following criteria are put forth, but are not intended to be all inclusive.

- 1. The applicant should have some experience in the industry for which certification is being sought.
- 2. The applicant should show that basic decisions pertaining to the daily operations of business can be independently made. This means the applicant must possess the knowledge to weigh all advice given and to make an independent determination.
- 3. The applicant should have some technical competence in the industry in which certification is being sought. Technical competence in this sense does not mean expert knowledge. It does mean the applicant should have a working knowledge of the technical requirements of the business needed to operate in the industry.

VII. MANAGERIAL CONTROL

OPD shall review the extent of "managerial" control. Managerial control means that the applicant has the demonstrable ability to make independent and unilateral business decisions needed to guide the future of the business. Managerial control may be demonstrated in many

ways. For an applicant to demonstrate managerial control, the following criteria are put forth, but are not intended to be all-inclusive:

- 1. Articles of incorporation, corporate bylaws and partnership agreements or other agreements shall be free of restrictive language, which would dilute the applicant's control, thereby preventing the applicant from making those decisions, which affect the future of the business.
- 2. The applicant shall be able to show clearly through production of documents the areas of applicant control, such as, but not limited to:
 - a) Authority and responsibility to initiate and sign checks, letters of credit, and loan agreements.
 - b) Authority to negotiate and signature authority for insurance and/or bonds;
 - c) Authority to negotiate for banking services.
- 3. Agreements for support services that do not lessen the applicant's control of the company are permitted as long as the applicant's power to manage the company is not restricted or impaired.

VIII. THE PURPOSE AND USE OF GOALS

<u>Definition and Purpose</u>: Cuyahoga County maintains a compelling interest in providing equal business opportunities for all persons wishing to do business with it. Therefore, OPD will continue to encourage, monitor, and track SBE participation in the procurement process through SBE Participation Goals. Goals are not quotas, but rather a method enabling Cuyahoga County to encourage and promote inclusion of SBEs in the procurement process.

<u>Procedure for Establishing Overall Goals</u>: Cuyahoga County has established an overall thirty percent (30%) subcontracting goal for SBE Participation in county procurements. If desired, Cuyahoga County may establish a revised overall SBE Participation Goal for Cuyahoga County. To establish a revised SBE overall goal, Cuyahoga County shall conduct an analysis of SBE participation in county purchasing activities. First, Cuyahoga County shall evaluate the levels of SBE participation for the Cuyahoga County overall procurement program for the previous year. As part of the review, Cuyahoga County may also consider data regarding SBE participation for the past three (3) fiscal years for a more accurate portrayal of SBE participation. Secondly, OPD shall review available SBE totals and percentages for the Cuyahoga County area. Based on the data, OPD shall make a recommendation for a revised overall SBE Participation Goal for review and approval by the County Executive and County Council.

<u>Procedure for Establishing Individual Goals</u>: To achieve the overall goal for SBE participation, the Director of OPD will establish SBE goals on a contract by contract basis based on an analysis of market availability and a commercially useful function within the contract. The Director of OPD may also waive the SBE goals for particular procurements.

Cuyahoga County will use the following criteria to determine the types of participation toward Cuyahoga County's overall annual SBE goal:

- 1) The total dollar value of the subcontract may be counted toward determining the specified goal. This includes the fees and commissions charged for professional services, legal counsel, manufacturers, financial consultants, and insurance agents.
- 2) Contract goals will be used to meet any portion of the annual goal. Contract goals are established so that, over the period to which the goal applies, they will cumulatively result in meeting any portion of the goal projected to be met through the use of race-neutral means.

Contract goals will only be established on those contracts that have subcontracting opportunities for SBE participation. The size of contract goals will be adapted to the circumstances of each contract (e.g., type and location of work, availability of SBEs to perform the particular type of work) and functionality within the contract.

<u>SBE Participation in Meeting Goals:</u> All Participants, including SBE Participants, shall make good faith efforts to attain goals through all subcontractor work.

- (1) <u>Prime Contractors</u>: A Prime Contractor should subcontract portions of its contract consistent with industry standards. However, all SBE subcontractors must perform a commercially useful function as defined herein. Only such participation by an SBE will be counted towards any goal.
- (2) <u>Subcontractor Participation</u>: Where a Prime utilizes one or more subcontractors or 2nd tier subcontractors to attain an SBE goal, the Participant may only count said SBE subcontractor or sub-subcontractor work toward goals. In no way shall subcontractors' or sub-subcontractors' work or dollar amount be construed to count toward said goal more than once. Only expenditures to SBE subcontractors that perform a commercially useful function in the work of that project or contract will be counted.
- (3) <u>Supplier Participation</u>: Where a Participant utilizes suppliers or distributors to satisfy the goal(s) in whole or in part, the SBE suppliers must perform a commercially useful function. Supplier participation may be approved upon review of the following factors:
 - i) The nature and amount of supplies to be furnished;
 - ii) Whether the SBE is a manufacturer, wholesaler or distributor of the supplies and has the capabilities to deliver same in accordance with its certification;
 - iii) Whether the SBE actually performs, manages and supervises the work to furnish the supplies; and
 - iv) Whether the SBE intends to purchase supplies from a non-SBE and simply resell same to the general or prime contractor for allowing those supplies to be counted towards fulfillment of the goal(s). Participants will receive no credit for the dollar amount of the supply contracted from brokers.

IX. EXCLUSIONS AND WAIVER OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH SBE GOAL

- 1. <u>Exclusions:</u> This Small Business Enterprise policy shall not apply to the following:
 - a) "Sole Source" procurements under the Cuyahoga County ordinances which by their very nature limit the source of supply to one vendor.
 - b) County purchases from political subdivisions/government entities;
 - c) County purchases off state contracts, off federal contracts, and from joint purchasing programs.
 - d) The acquisition of any interest in real property including lease holdings.
 - e) Direct and indirect employee payments including payroll expenditures, pensions and unemployment compensation and other employee-related expenditures;
 - f) Any other categories and subcategories of goods and services Cuyahoga County may from time to time establish as excluded contracts upon recommendation of the Director of the Ohio of Procurement & Diversity and approval by the Cuyahoga County Executive and Cuyahoga County Council.
- 2. <u>Application for Waiver.</u> If the Contractor, consultant, supplier or vendor does not meet the project goal, the bidder or offer or may seek a partial or total waiver of the project goal. The application for waiver of all or part of the project goal shall include full documentary evidence of the Participant's good faith efforts to meet the project goal and why the request for waiver should be granted. The application shall be <u>notarized</u> and submitted as a part of the bid or offer. Additional explanation, affidavits, exhibits or other materials may be required by the SBE Program to substantiate good faith efforts. (See the Good Faith Effort Certification, SBE-3, 2 pages, in the attached Bidder's Manual). Waivers may also be granted for an acceptable explanation as to why the goals should be waived.
- 3. <u>Waiver for Detriment to Public Health, Safety or Financial Welfare.</u> The SBE Program goal may be waived if the same causes a detriment to public health, safety or the financial welfare of the County. The SBE Program goal may also be waived in the event available SBEs provide price quotes which are unreasonably high in that they exceed competitive levels beyond amounts which can be attributed to cost, overhead and profit.

X. REQUIREMENTS OF PRIME CONTRACTORS

In consideration of the right and privilege to submit a bid or proposal on construction projects and other contracts with Cuyahoga County, at the time of submitting a proposal or bid, each participant shall be required to present appropriate documentation. The documents described below must be completed and signed by each Participant before a proposal or bid can be considered responsive:

- 1) <u>Covenant of Non-Discrimination</u>: Each Participant must submit a duly executed and attested Covenant of Non-Discrimination (SBE-1, found in the attached Bidder's Manual). This written instrument shall contain promises, declarations and/or affirmations made by the Participant. The completed document must contain an original signature and date of signature.
- 2) <u>SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan</u>: Each Participant must submit a duly executed Subcontractor Participation Plan (SBE-2, found in the attached Bidder's Manual) for each SBE subcontractor proposed. Copies and/or facsimiles of SBE-2 submitted with bids/proposals are acceptable BUT all required signatures must be dated as indicated. Also, please note the following:
 - a) Certified SBEs who are bidding as prime contractors **MUST** complete and submit the top portion of Form SBE-2 to guarantee the 20% SBE credit.
 - b) SBEs with multiple geographical locations shall enter the Cuyahoga County address and contact information on Form SBE-2.
 - c) Prime vendors are **PROHIBITED** from using SBE(s) with whom the prime vendor has a familial relationship, joint or co-ownership, common partners, officers, or a shareholder relationship to meet the SBE Participation Goal. Hence, on Cuyahoga County projects/contracts, any portion of work subcontracted to a SBE vendor by a prime vendor that meets the above-mentioned criteria will **NOT** count towards the achievement of the established SBE Participation Goal.

<u>Use of 2^{nd} Tier Subcontractors</u>: In the event that a subcontractor portions out work and utilizes the services of a sub-subcontractor or vendor, the prime contractor shall be required to report this use to OPD. For reporting purposes, the prime contractor shall report statistical data for the sub-subcontractor or sub-vendor, including race, gender, business size, area of specialization, dollar value, description of services or products purchased, and contact information. No SBE subcontractor will be permitted to subcontract more than 25% of their subcontract work (based on dollar value) without prior approval by OPD.

<u>Other Information and Data</u>: OPD may request additional information and data prior to a contract award. This information may include, but is not limited to, information regarding business ownership of all subcontractors to be utilized on the project, all of which shall reflect the race, gender, location, size, and area of specialization and structure of the identified businesses.

A PARTICIPANT'S FAILURE OR REFUSAL TO PROVIDE INFORMATION AND DATA REQUIRED BY THIS PROGRAM AND REQUESTED BY OPD SHALL SUBJECT THE PARTICIPANT TO HAVING A PROPOSAL OR BID DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE.

XI. GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

Aggressive "Good Faith Efforts" to include SBEs in the procurement process are required of all Participants. These Good Faith Efforts should be in addition to the Participant's regular and customary solicitation process of contact with potential subcontractors and/or vendors.

<u>Written Notice to SBEs</u>: To demonstrate good faith efforts, a Participant shall deliver written or electronic notice to potential, SBEs. SBEs should be contacted not less than one (1) week before the bid or proposal due date. Names, addresses, and telephone numbers for available SBEs may be obtained by contacting OPD or reviewing the database on the website at http://opd.cuyahogacounty.us/.

The written or electronic notice sent to potential subcontractors or vendors shall contain the following:

- (1) Sufficient information about the plans, specifications, and relevant terms and conditions of the solicitation. This should include information about the work which will be subcontracted or the goods which will be obtained from subcontractors and suppliers;
- (2) A contact person knowledgeable of the project scope documents, within the Participant's office, to answer questions about the conditions of the contract;
- (3) Information as to the Participant's bonding requirements; and
- (4) The deadline for price quotations.

<u>Evaluation of Good Faith Efforts</u>: In evaluating good faith efforts, OPD will determine whether the Participant has made reasonable good faith efforts to obtain SBE participation as part of its bid or proposal. OPD may evaluate not only the different kinds of efforts made by a Participant, but also the quantity and intensity of those efforts.

OPD will consider a completed Good Faith Effort Certification (SBE-3, 2 pages, found in the attached Bidder's Manual), as evidence of a Participant's good faith in trying to obtain SBE participation in a bid or proposal.

<u>Required Documentation</u>: To demonstrate good faith efforts, Participants shall keep detailed records of all correspondence and responses thereto, logs of all telephone calls made and received regarding the project or contract, confirmation receipts for fax transmissions, receipts from registered or certified mail, copies of advertisements in publications and other media, and other relevant papers required by this Program.

<u>Good Faith Effort Certification</u>: Participant must submit a completed Good Faith Certification (SBE-3, found in the attached Bidder's Manual) ONLY if the SBE Participation Goal is not met. Additional documentation demonstrating a good faith effort must accompany the checklist. The completed document must contain an original signature, notarizations, and date of signature.

XII. AWARD OF CONTRACTS

<u>Award of Contract</u>: Proposals/ bids may be rejected and projects re-submitted for the sole purpose of attaining goals where no "good faith effort" has been demonstrated. Cuyahoga County reserves the right to determine the action to be taken on the contract if a goal is not met, including rejecting any or all bids or proposals. If an awarded contract is later amended for additional dollars, SBE subcontractor participation should still reflect the percentage of dollars originally contracted for.

When evaluating a bid to determine the lowest and best bid, the County may consider, in addition to all of the other factors set forth in the instructions to bidders, whether a bid is SBE compliant; provided, however, that such SBE compliance shall not be considered if the difference between the SBE-compliant bid and the lowest responsive bid is more than the price preference specified below.

Lowest Bid Received Range (\$)	Price Preference (%) & Limit	Price Preference (\$)
$\begin{array}{c} 0-500,000\\ 500,001-1,000,000\\ 1,000,0001-3,000,000\\ 3,000,001-5,000,000\\ >5,000,000\end{array}$	10% 10% up to max \$80,000 (10-8) 8% up to max \$210,000 (8-7) 7% up to max \$250,000 (7-5) \$250,000 maximum (≤5)	0 - 50,000 50,000 - 80,000 80,000 - 210,000 210,000 - 250,000 250,000 maximum

XIII. MONITORING AND POST-AWARD REPORTING

<u>Office of Procurement and Diversity Authorization to Monitor</u>: OPD shall be authorized to collect from all Participants such data and information as is necessary to monitor this Program. This information may include information as to business ownership, supplier information, subcontractor information, all of which shall reflect the contract information, race, gender, business location, and size of the identified businesses.</u>

OPD shall continuously monitor the participation of SBEs in the procurement of goods and services for Cuyahoga County. Such monitoring shall include, but is not necessarily limited to, a statistical analysis of each construction trade, business service, professional service and commodity to determine whether there is utilization of SBEs in a manner that is proportionate to the established goal.

OPD will provide written reports on an annual basis. OPD's report shall contain a summary of the purchases and contracts placed with SBEs for the period and the relative percentage to the

total of purchases and contracts for that period and the size, quantity and quality of SBE involvement by dollar volume.

<u>Participant's Post-Award Reporting</u>: Participants who are awarded contracts must submit reports, during the course of, and at the end of the contract as requested by OPD. These reports shall summarize the number and dollar amounts of payments made during the term of the contract to subcontractors. The final report shall summarize the number and dollar amounts of payments made during the term of the contract to all subcontractors and shall reflect the SBE designation of the subcontractor if any. OPD reserves the right to audit a contract for SBE participation at his/her discretion during any phase of the project. An audit would include but not be limited to: on site reviews, desk reviews, requests for cancelled checks, requests for invoices, certified payroll reports, etc.

<u>SBE</u> Subcontractor Substitutions or Replacements: The prime contractor shall report any replacements or substitutions of the use of SBE subcontractors to OPD immediately. Prior approval by the Director of OPD is required for SBE substitutions/replacements. For reporting purposes, the prime contractor shall report to OPD statistical data pertaining to the new subcontractor, including race, gender, business size, area of specialization, and contact information on the SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan form (SBE-2).

OPD will require a Participant to make good faith efforts to replace a SBE that is terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract with another SBE to the extent needed to meet the contract SBE Participation Goal. The Participant must notify OPD immediately, and in writing, of the SBE's inability or unwillingness to perform and provide reasonable documentation. The request should include at a minimum: the name of the SBE firm, the contact, the phone number, the scope of work initially assigned to the SBE firm, dollars paid to date, percent of scope completed, and the reason for the substitution request including documentation of the SBE's withdrawal.

The Participant will be given five (5) business days to find a SBE substitution if the request is granted. In this situation, the Participant will be required to obtain prior approval of the substitute SBE and to provide copies of SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan (SBE-2) or documentation of good faith efforts.

If the Participant fails or refuses to comply in the time specified, OPD may issue a recommendation to stop all or part of payment and/or work until satisfactory action has been taken. If the Participant still fails to comply, OPD may issue a recommendation of termination of the contract.

<u>Contractors' Closeout Activity Reports</u>: To further monitor SBE participation, closeout activity reports will be required from project prime contractors and prime consultants identifying activities of all subcontractors and sub-consultants. This report shall include all modifications/amendments/change orders and shall reflect the contact information, race, gender, business size, scope of work, and amount paid to each firm.

XIV. GRIEVANCE PROCESS

Any Participant or other party allegedly aggrieved by the provisions of this program may submit a written complaint to OPD who will notify the SBE Grievance Hearing Board. The SBE Grievance Hearing Board is empowered to hear all grievances concerning certification, decertification, goal complaints, good faith efforts and any other grievances called by the provisions of this program.

<u>SBE Grievance Hearing Board</u>: The SBE Grievance Hearing Board consist of the following five (5) members:

- Deputy Chief of Staff, Development or his/her designee
- Director of Public Works or his/her designee
- Deputy Chief of Staff, Justice or his/.her designee
- Two (2) County Council Members appointed by the President of County Council

The SBE Grievance Hearing Board meets as required to hear grievances pertaining to the SBE Program. A meeting quorum of this board consists of four (4) members. An affirmative vote by at least three (3) members is required for action items.

<u>Request for Review</u>: An allegedly aggrieved party may seek review of an OPD determination or decision by filing a written Request for Review with OPD within five (5) days of receipt of the Determination of Non-Compliance, certification denial, recertification denial, or other SBE decision.

<u>Scheduling the Hearing/Notice of Hearing</u>: Upon receipt of the request for review from the allegedly aggrieved party, OPD shall forward the request for review to the SBE Grievance Hearing Board within three (3) business days of receipt and proceed with scheduling the hearing. Every effort shall be made to hold the hearing no more than twenty (20) days from the date of receipt of the request for review. All external parties shall be sent a written notice by registered mail which shall state the date, time, and place of the hearing.

<u>Hearing</u>: The hearings shall be informal. Participants shall include OPD and the allegedly aggrieved person(s), or a representative of the allegedly aggrieved person. Said hearing shall comply with State of Ohio law relative to the Open Meetings Act.

<u>Decision</u>: The SBE Grievance Hearing Board shall issue a decision at the conclusion of the hearing which may approve or disapprove of OPD's decision or determination.

<u>Exhaustion of Legal Remedies</u>: An aggrieved person or entity must comply with the review process as outlined herein. Once a person or entity has exhausted the administrative remedies outlined in the Program, that person or entity may seek any other statutory, legal or equitable remedies that may be available. Failure to exhaust all administrative remedies listed above is an affirmative defense to any statutory, legal or equitable proceeding that may arise.

XV. SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE

Cuyahoga County shall have the authority and power to enforce the provisions of this Program. Failure of a participant to comply with the requirements shall subject it to administrative sanctions. In addition, a violation of this Program shall constitute a material breach of contract enforceable at law or in equity, as will all other contract provisions, including the imposition of penalties. The following sanctions and penalties are established for the enforcement of this Program:

- (1) <u>Determination of Non-Responsiveness</u>: In addition to standard factors in its evaluation, Cuyahoga County may declare a bid or proposal non-responsive where it is determined that a Participant has not filed with Cuyahoga County a duly executed Covenant of Non-Discrimination or any other document as required by this Program.
- (2) <u>Limited Suspension</u>: For falsifications, misrepresentations, deception to obtain a contract, Cuyahoga County may remove a Participant from its list of eligible firms entitled to do business with Cuyahoga County.
- (3) <u>Rejection of Future Proposals</u>: Cuyahoga County may reject any or all future Proposals of a Participant until such time as the Participant demonstrates that it is or shall come into compliance.
- (4) <u>Withholding Payment</u>: Cuyahoga County may withhold payment, until such time as the Participant demonstrates that it is or shall come into compliance.
- (5) <u>Cancellation of Contract</u>: Cuyahoga County may declare a contract null and void where, after such contract has been awarded, an investigation determines that the Participant's documents contain false, fictitious, or fraudulent information.
- (6) <u>Permanent Debarment</u>: For repeated violations, Cuyahoga County may remove a Participant from its list of firms entitled to do business with Cuyahoga County indefinitely.

<u>Guidelines for Imposition of Sanctions</u>: The authority and power for imposition of sanctions and penalties shall lie with county authorities and elected/appointed officials as outlined in the County Charter, County Ordinances, state laws, and federal laws. The recommendation however, may come from the SBE Grievance Hearing Board or OPD.

- (1) <u>General:</u> Sanctions may be recommended if there is evidence of specific conduct on the part of the Participant that is inconsistent with or in direct opposition to the applicable provisions of this Program. Furthermore, the imposition and enforcement of sanctions shall be consistent with applicable county ordinances, state laws, and federal laws.
- (2) <u>Severity of Sanctions</u>: In determining the length of any suspension, Cuyahoga County shall consider the following factors:

- (i) Whether the failure to comply with applicable requirements involved intentional conduct or, alternatively, may be reasonably concluded to have resulted from a misunderstanding on the part of the Participant of the duties imposed on them by this Program;
- (ii) The number of specific incidences of failure by the Participant to comply;
- (iii) Whether the Participant has been previously suspended;
- (iv) Whether the Participant has failed or refused to provide Cuyahoga County or OPD with any information required or requested by this Program;
- (v) Whether the Participant has materially misrepresented any applicable facts in any filing or communication to Cuyahoga County or OPD; and
- (vi) Whether any subsequent restructuring of the Participant's business or other action has been undertaken to cure the deficiencies in meeting applicable requirements.
- (1) <u>Length of Suspension</u>: Suspensions may be for any length of time. Cuyahoga County may impose suspensions in excess of one year in cases involving intentional or fraudulent misrepresentation or concealment of material facts, multiple acts in breach of the Program, cases where the Participant has been previously suspended, or other similarly situated misconduct.

<u>Prohibition Against False Statements</u>: It shall be unlawful for any person, knowingly and willfully and with intent to mislead or to make any false or fraudulent **representations to Cuyahoga County**. Cuyahoga County may impose sanctions against any person making such false representation in connection with the SBE Program.

XVI. TRAINING AND OUTREACH STRATEGIES

<u>Training</u>: Cuyahoga County remains committed to implementing a program that increases the participation of SBEs in Cuyahoga County's procurement opportunities. To ensure that all Cuyahoga County employees involved in purchasing decisions are appropriately informed, certain personnel would undergo training to increase sensitivity regarding the utilization of SBEs. Internal training shall ensure that all staff with purchasing authority have the capacity and capability to engage in a consistent, fair and open procurement process. Training sessions shall occur periodically. The objective of the training is to effectively communicate the importance of the Program and the mechanics of how the Program operates. The training shall address the following topics, among others:

- (i) Understanding the purpose of the Program.
- (ii) Understanding the benefits of doing business with SBEs.
- (iii) Understanding how the Program is administered.

(iv) Developing innovative techniques to increase SBE participation.

<u>Outreach Program</u>: To ensure that opportunities to participate in Cuyahoga County's contracts are available to the widest feasible universe of willing, available and qualified businesses, OPD shall develop and engage in outreach designed to increase public awareness of the Program. This outreach may consist of any of the following:

- (1) <u>Public Awareness of the Program</u>. To increase the visibility of OPD and to increase the awareness of the Program, OPD shall disseminate at community events, trade shows, and other appropriate business functions, and publish at regular intervals information describing the Program. This information shall also identify ongoing contracting opportunities. OPD will actively participate in the various advocacy groups to provide constant feedback and to keep SBEs abreast of the Program and contracting opportunities.
- (2) <u>Outreach to SBEs</u>. OPD shall assist SBEs by providing workshops and seminars on Cuyahoga County's procurement policies and procedures.

XVII. GRADUATION BY SBE PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS

If a certified and otherwise eligible SBE achieves annual gross revenues or similar indicators of business size for three (3) consecutive years in its respective industry in excess of the pertinent SBA Size Standards for its certification category, then it shall be deemed to have overcome the effects of size and to have reached a competitive status in the marketplace. Upon achievement of such status, said firm(s) shall be graduated from the program and shall thereafter be ineligible for utilization to fulfill enforceable SBE Program participation goals. A graduated SBE may not subsequently re-enter the program unless, after the expiration of two calendar years, the SBE demonstrates:

- 1. that its annual gross receipts have declined to levels below those as set forth above and;
- 2. that during said two calendar years it was unable to achieve meaningful participation in Cuyahoga County contracts and/or in the public and private sectors of the larger local economy despite its good faith efforts to do so.

XVIII. MENTOR-PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM

OPD may develop a Mentor-Protégé program and encourage all contractors and subcontractors to participate. If the program has been established, OPD shall make available a database of potential Mentor and Protégé firms. Participation in **this program is strictly** voluntary. No contractor or vendor shall be penalized or preferred based upon participation or non-participation in the program. Any Participants volunteering for this program shall be given recognition by OPD.

XIX. BOND ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

As an initiative to enhance SBE participation, Cuyahoga County may investigate, develop, and implement a bond assistance program.

XX. SEVERABILITY

If any of the provisions set forth in this Program or any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word thereof shall be found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the application of the remainder of this Program shall not be affected by such invalidity.

XXI. DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Program, the following words, terms, phrases and abbreviations shall have the following meanings:

<u>"Certification"</u>: shall mean the qualifying process that ensures buyers and local, state, and federal agencies that a particular business is eligible to become a part of the database which performs a commercially useful function.

<u>"Commercially Useful Function</u>": shall mean the performance of real and actual services by a Participant who contracts with Cuyahoga County, or subcontracts with another business enterprise which contracts with Cuyahoga County. A business enterprise serving as a "conduit", "front" or "pass-through" for another business shall not be deemed to perform a commercially useful function. In determining whether a business is performing a commercially useful function, factors, including but not limited to the following, will be considered:

- i) The nature and amount of work contracted;
- ii) Whether the SBE has the skill and expertise to perform work for which it has been certified;
- iii) Whether the SBE actually performs, manages and supervises the work;
- iv) Whether the SBE intends to purchase commodities and/or services from a non-SBE and simply resell same to the general or prime contractor for the purpose of allowing those commodities and/or services to be counted towards the fulfillment of a goal;
- v) Standard industry practices relating to the use of the subcontractors. Consistent with standard industry practices, an SBE subcontractor may enter into second tier

subcontracts. If an SBE subcontractor subcontracts a significantly greater portion of the work of its subcontract to a non-SBE inconsistent with standard industry practices, the SBE subcontractor shall be presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function.

"Compliance": shall mean the condition existing when a Participant has met the requirements of this Program.

<u>"Conduit"</u>: shall mean a business which purchases goods or services that are not normally purchased or sold as part of its daily business from another business(es) for the sole purpose of resale to Cuyahoga County or a contractor doing business with Cuyahoga County.

<u>"Contract"</u>: shall mean any mutually binding legal obligation of Cuyahoga County created to acquire some good and/or service from one or more Participants, which is paid or which is to be paid for, in whole or in part, with monetary appropriations of Cuyahoga County. In this context, the terms "contracting", "purchasing", and "procurement" are synonymous and refer to the process or processes under which Cuyahoga County undertakes such acquisitions.

<u>"Cuyahoga County"</u>: shall mean the government agency which provides public contracting to increase quality of life in the County.

<u>"Covenant of Non-Discrimination</u>": shall mean, collectively, one or more contractual affirmative promises (1) to adopt the policies of Cuyahoga County relating to the participation of SBEs in the procurement process; (2) to undertake certain good faith efforts to solicit SBEs participation; and (3) not to otherwise engage in discriminatory conduct against SBEs.

<u>"Department"</u>: Shall mean a department, division or elected officials office which solicits proposals through OPD.

<u>"Goal"</u>: shall mean an aspirational effort to attain a certain level of SBEs participation on contracts awarded by the Cuyahoga County based on subcontracting opportunities and available SBEs to perform.

<u>"Good Faith Efforts"</u>: shall mean the aggressive actions of a Participant undertaken in earnest to achieve an SBE goal and ensure that it does not discriminate in its contracting practices.

<u>"Independent"</u>: shall mean that with respect to the ownership, control and activity of a SBE, the business shall operate separate and apart from the ownership, control or undue influence of another business owned and controlled by one or more non-SBEs.

"Joint Venture": shall mean an association of two or more independent persons, partnerships, corporations (or any combination of them) formed, consistent with the laws of the State of Ohio. This joint venture would carry out a single, for-profit business enterprise, for which the parties combine their property, capital, efforts, skills and knowledge, and in which the SBE is responsible for a distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract and whose share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks, and profits of the joint venture are commensurate with its ownership interest.

"<u>Manufacturer</u>": shall mean an individual (or individuals) who owns, operates, or maintains a factory or establishment that produces on the premises the components, materials, or supplies obtained by the Participant or Cuyahoga County.

<u>"OPD</u>": shall mean the Office of Procurement & Diversity, which is responsible for administration of the SBE Program.

<u>"Non-Compliance"</u>: shall mean the condition that exists when a Participant has failed to meet the requirements of the SBE.

<u>"Office"</u>: shall mean that a business enterprise with an established place of business in the Cuyahoga County area at which one or more of its employees is regularly based and that such place of business has a substantial role in the business' performance of a commercially useful function as herein defined. A location utilized solely as a post office box, mail drop or telephone message center or any combination thereof, with no other substantial work function, shall not constitute a significant business presence.

<u>"Participant"</u>: shall mean any contractor, vendor, supplier, or other person, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other business entity that submits a bid or proposal to Cuyahoga County or expressed interest in submitting a bid or proposal in response to competitive solicitation issued by Cuyahoga County or who has been awarded a contract by Cuyahoga County.

<u>"Project Owner"</u>: shall mean the representative of Cuyahoga County that enters into agreement or contracts with a firm for services or supplies or any other item which shall cause a disbursement of funds from Cuyahoga County.

<u>"Proposal"</u>: shall mean a quotation, proposal, bid or offer by a Participant to perform or provide labor, materials, supplies, or services to Cuyahoga County in response to competitive solicitation issued by Cuyahoga County.

<u>"Race/Gender-Conscious"</u>: shall mean any governmental or legislative policy or programmatic action that uses race or gender as criteria for participation. The use of an MBE or WBE goal is a primary example of a race-conscious measure.

<u>"Race/Gender-Neutral"</u>: shall mean any governmental or legislative policy or a programmatic action in which race or gender is not among, or the specific criteria for participation. While benefiting MBEs and WBEs, it is not solely focused on MBE or WBE firms and can be used to assist all small businesses. For example, small business outreach programs, technical assistance programs, mobilization fees, bonding assistance and prompt payment provisions can assist a wide variety of small businesses, not just MBEs and WBEs.

<u>"Responsible"</u>: shall reference a Participant's integrity, compliance with public policy, and record of past performance and financial and technical resources. A Participant must meet certain requirements to be considered a responsible bidder.

"<u>Responsive</u>": shall mean that a bid must comply in all material respects, both to the method and timeliness of submission and to the substance of any resulting contract, so that all Participants may stand on an equal footing and the integrity of the competitive bidding system may be maintained.

<u>"Small Business Enterprise" ("SBE")</u>: shall refer to a firm that is certified by OPD, submitted an application and has been accepted as a firm eligible to take advantage of affirmative action efforts established in this Program.

<u>"Underutilization"</u>: shall mean the percentage of dollars spent by Cuyahoga County with SBEs which is less than would be expected based on SBE availability in the County.

•



RQ {ENTER RQ#}

BIDDERS' MANUAL

Small Business Enterprise Program

For Construction, Services, Supplies and Professional Service Contracts

The goal of the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program is to support small businesses by creating positive partnerships in County contracting and other procurement opportunities. The Small Business Enterprise Program will achieve this goal by providing and supporting opportunities for small firms to grow and thereby compete effectively in the general environment for contracting opportunities.

THE SBE SUBCONTRACTOR PARTICIPATION GOAL FOR THIS BID/PROPOSAL IS

ENTER SBE %}%

Cuyahoga County Is an Equal Opportunity Employer

SBE BIDDERS' MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section I.	Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Certification	Page 3
Section II.	SBE Participation Goal	Page 3
Section III.	Mandatory Bidding Requirements for Prime Contractors	Page 3
Section IV.	Good Faith Efforts	Page 4
Section V.	Award of Contracts	Page 5
Section VI.	Monitoring and Post-Award Reporting	Page 6

REQUIRED FORMS:

-	Covenant of Non-Discrimination (SBE-1)
-	SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan (SBE-2)

- Good Faith Effort Certification (SBE-3, 2 pages)
- Sample of Completed SBE forms (4 pages)

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

I. Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Certification

Only those Small Business Enterprises certified by the Cuyahoga County 's Office of Procurement & Diversity (OPD) shall be eligible for the fulfillment of the SBE participation goal. SBE listings may be obtained from the Office of Procurement & Diversity. If a Small Business Enterprise elects to compete for county business without being certified as such, they may do so, but any bid submitted will not be counted towards fulfillment of the SBE participation goal.

An SBE desiring certification with OPD must complete the certification application. SBE applications may be obtained from the:

Office of Procurement & Diversity County Administration Building, Room 110 1219 Ontario Street Cleveland, Ohio 44113 (216) 443-7230 or downloaded at www.opd.cuyahogacounty.us

II. <u>SBE Participation Goal</u>

The SBE Participation goal can be achieved in the following manner(s):

- 1. A prime vendor subcontracts with one or more certified SBEs to meet or exceed the SBE goal;
- 2. A prime vendor subcontracts with one or more certified SBEs in an amount short of the SBE goal, but submits a complete Good Faith Effort (further described below);
- 3. A certified SBE who bids as a prime contractor subcontracts a portion of the work to another certified SBE. Certified SBEs bidding as prime contractors will receive a 20% credit towards the SBE participation goal. However, the certified SBE must secure additional certified SBE subcontractor participation and/or seek a waiver based on Good Faith Effort (further described below) for any remaining balance of the SBE goal.

III. Mandatory Bidding Requirements for Prime Contractors

In consideration of the right and privilege to submit a bid or proposal on construction projects and other contracts with Cuyahoga County, at the time of submitting a proposal or bid, each participant shall be required to present appropriate documentation. The documents described below must be completed and signed by each Participant before a proposal or bid can be considered responsive:

- <u>Covenant of Non-Discrimination</u>: Each Participant must submit a duly executed and attested Covenant of Non-Discrimination (SBE-1, found in the attached Bidder's Manual). This written instrument shall contain promises, declarations and/or affirmations made by the Participant. The completed document must contain an original signature and date of signature.
- 4) <u>SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan</u>: Each Participant must submit a duly executed Subcontractor Participation Plan (SBE-2, found in the attached B l) for each SBE subcontractor proposed.

Copies and/or facsimiles of SBE-2 submitted with bids/proposals are acceptable BUT all required signatures must be dated as indicated. Also, please note the following:

- a) Certified SBEs who are bidding as prime contractors **MUST** complete and submit the top portion of Form SBE-2 to guarantee the 20% SBE credit.
- b) SBEs with multiple geographical locations shall enter the Cuyahoga County address and contact information on Form SBE-2.
- c) Prime vendors are **PROHIBITED** from using SBE(s) with whom the prime vendor has a familial relationship, joint or co-ownership, common partners, officers, or a shareholder relationship to meet the SBE Participation Goal. Hence, on Cuyahoga County projects/contracts, any portion of work subcontracted to a SBE vendor by a prime vendor that meets the above-mentioned criteria will **NOT** count towards the achievement of the established SBE Participation Goal.

<u>Use of 2nd Tier Subcontractors</u>: In the event that a subcontractor portions out work and utilizes the services of a sub-subcontractor or vendor, the prime contractor shall be required to report this use to OPD. For reporting purposes, the prime contractor shall report statistical data for the sub-subcontractor or sub-vendor, including race, gender, business size, area of specialization, dollar value, description of services or products purchased, and contact information. No SBE subcontractor will be permitted to subcontract more than 25% of their subcontract work (based on dollar value) without prior approval by OPD.

<u>Other Information and Data</u>: OPD may request additional information and data prior to a contract award. This information may include, but is not limited to, information regarding business ownership of all subcontractors to be utilized on the project, all of which shall reflect the race, gender, location, size, and area of specialization and structure of the identified businesses.

A PARTICIPANT'S FAILURE OR REFUSAL TO PROVIDE INFORMATION AND DATA REQUIRED BY THIS PROGRAM AND REQUESTED BY OPD SHALL SUBJECT THE PARTICIPANT TO HAVING A PROPOSAL OR BID DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE.

IV. Good Faith Efforts

Aggressive "Good Faith Efforts" to include SBEs in the procurement process are required of all Participants. These Good Faith Efforts should be in addition to the Participant's regular and customary solicitation process of contact with potential subcontractors and/or vendors.

<u>Written Notice to SBEs</u>: To demonstrate good faith efforts, a Participant shall deliver written or electronic notice to potential, SBEs. SBEs should be contacted not less than one (1) week before the bid or proposal due date. Names, addresses, and telephone numbers for available SBEs may be obtained by contacting OPD or reviewing the database on the website at http://opd.cuyahogacounty.us/.

The written or electronic notice sent to potential subcontractors or vendors shall contain the following:

(1) Sufficient information about the plans, specifications, and relevant terms and conditions of the solicitation. This should include information about the work which will be subcontracted or the goods which will be obtained from subcontractors and suppliers;

- (2) A contact person knowledgeable of the project scope documents, within the Participant's office, to answer questions about the conditions of the contract;
- (3) Information as to the Participant's bonding requirements; and
- (4) The deadline for price quotations.

<u>Evaluation of Good Faith Efforts</u>: In evaluating good faith efforts, OPD will determine whether the Participant has made reasonable good faith efforts to obtain SBE participation as part of its bid or proposal. OPD may evaluate not only the different kinds of efforts made by a Participant, but also the quantity and intensity of those efforts.

OPD will consider a completed Good Faith Effort Certification (SBE-3, 2 pages, found in the attached Bidder's Manual), as evidence of a Participant's good faith in trying to obtain SBE participation in a bid or proposal.

<u>Required Documentation</u>: To demonstrate good faith efforts, Participants shall keep detailed records of all correspondence and responses thereto, logs of all telephone calls made and received regarding the project or contract, confirmation receipts for fax transmissions, receipts from registered or certified mail, copies of advertisements in publications and other media, and other relevant papers required by this Program.

<u>Good Faith Effort Certification</u>: Participant must submit a completed Good Faith Certification (SBE-3, found in the attached Bidder's Manual) ONLY if the SBE Participation Goal is not met. Additional documentation demonstrating a good faith effort must accompany the checklist. The completed document must contain an original signature, notarizations, and date of signature.

V. Award of Contracts

<u>Award of Contract</u>: Proposals/ bids may be rejected and projects re-submitted for the sole purpose of attaining goals where no "good faith effort" has been demonstrated. Cuyahoga County reserves the right to determine the action to be taken on the contract if a goal is not met, including rejecting any or all bids or proposals. If an awarded contract is later amended for additional dollars, SBE subcontractor participation should still reflect the percentage of dollars originally contracted for.

When evaluating a bid to determine the lowest and best bid, the County may consider, in addition to all of the other factors set forth in the instructions to bidders, whether a bid is SBE compliant; provided, however, that such SBE compliance shall not be considered if the difference between the SBE-compliant bid and the lowest responsive bid is more than the price preference specified below.

Lowest Bid Received	Price Preference (%)	Price Preference
Range (\$)	&	(\$)
	Limit	
0-500,000	10%	0-50,000
500,001 - 1,000,000	10% up to max \$80,000 (10-8)	50,000 - 80,000
1,000,0001 - 3,000,000	8% up to max \$210,000 (8-7)	80,000 - 210,000
3,000,001 - 5,000,000	7% up to max \$250,000 (7-5)	210,000 - 250,000
>5,000,000	\$250,000 maximum (≤5)	250,000 maximum

VI. Monitoring and Post-Award Reporting

<u>Office of Procurement and Diversity Authorization to Monitor</u>: OPD shall be authorized to collect from all Participants such data and information as is necessary to monitor this Program. This information may include information as to business ownership, supplier information, subcontractor information, all of which shall reflect the contract information, race, gender, business location, and size of the identified businesses.</u>

OPD shall continuously monitor the participation of SBEs in the procurement of goods and services for Cuyahoga County. Such monitoring shall include, but is not necessarily limited to, a statistical analysis of each construction trade, business service, professional service and commodity to determine whether there is utilization of SBEs in a manner that is proportionate to the established goal.

OPD will provide written reports on an annual basis. OPD's report shall contain a summary of the purchases and contracts placed with SBEs for the period and the relative percentage to the total of purchases and contracts for that period and the size, quantity and quality of SBE involvement by dollar volume.

<u>Participant's Post-Award Reporting</u>: Participants who are awarded contracts must submit reports, during the course of, and at the end of the contract as requested by OPD. These reports shall summarize the number and dollar amounts of payments made during the term of the contract to subcontractors. The final report shall summarize the number and dollar amounts of payments made during the term of the contract to all subcontractors and shall reflect the SBE designation of the subcontractor if any. OPD reserves the right to audit a contract for SBE participation at his/her discretion during any phase of the project. An audit would include but not be limited to: on site reviews, desk reviews, requests for cancelled checks, requests for invoices, certified payroll reports, etc.

<u>SBE</u> Subcontractor Substitutions or Replacements: The prime contractor shall report any replacements or substitutions of the use of SBE subcontractors to OPD immediately. Prior approval by the Director of OPD is required for SBE substitutions/replacements. For reporting purposes, the prime contractor shall report to OPD statistical data pertaining to the new subcontractor, including race, gender, business size, area of specialization, and contact information on the SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan form (SBE-2).

OPD will require a Participant to make good faith efforts to replace a SBE that is terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract with another SBE to the extent needed to meet the contract SBE Participation Goal. The Participant must notify OPD immediately, and in writing, of the SBE's inability or unwillingness to perform and provide reasonable documentation. The request should include at a minimum: the name of the SBE firm, the contact, the phone number, the scope of work initially assigned to the SBE firm, dollars paid to date, percent of scope completed, and the reason for the substitution request including documentation of the SBE's withdrawal.

The Participant will be given five (5) business days to find a SBE substitution if the request is granted. In this situation, the Participant will be required to obtain prior approval of the substitute SBE and to provide copies of SBE Subcontractor Participation Plan (SBE-2) or documentation of good faith efforts.

If the Participant fails or refuses to comply in the time specified, OPD may issue a recommendation to stop all or part of payment and/or work until satisfactory action has been taken. If the Participant still fails to comply, OPD may issue a recommendation of termination of the contract.

<u>Contractors' Closeout Activity Reports</u>: To further monitor SBE participation, closeout activity reports will be required from project prime contractors and prime consultants identifying activities of all subcontractors and sub-consultants. This report shall include all modifications/amendments/change orders and shall reflect the contact information, race, gender, business size, scope of work, and amount paid to each firm.

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

The following forms regarding the Small Business Enterprise Program must be completed and submitted with bids/proposals:

COVENANT OF NON-DISCRIMINATION (SBE-1)

SBE SUBCONTRACTOR PARTICIPATION PLAN (SBE-2)

GOOD FAITH EFFORT CERTIFICATION (SBE-3, 2 PAGES)

COVENANT OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

(MUST be completed and submitted with ALL bids or proposals)

Know All Men By T	hese Presents, that I/we, (),
•		Name(s)	
(), (),
Title	e(s)	Name of Company	

(hereinafter "Company"), in consideration of the privilege to submit Bids/Proposals on contracts funded, in whole or in part, by Cuyahoga County, hereby consents, covenants and agrees as follows:

(1) No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, or otherwise discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national origin or gender in connection with any Bid/Proposal submitted to Cuyahoga County or the performance of any contract resulting from;

(2) That it is and shall be the policy of this Company to provide equal opportunity to all business persons seeking to contact or otherwise interested in contracting with this Company, including various eligible Small Business Enterprises (hereinafter "SBEs");

(3) In connection herewith, I/We acknowledge and warrant that this Company has been made aware of, understands and agrees to make a Good Faith Effort to solicit SBEs to do business with this Company;

(4) That the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be continuing in nature and shall remain in full force and effect without interruption;

(5) That the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be and are hereby deemed to be made a part of, and incorporated by reference into, any contract or portion thereof which this Company may hereafter obtain; and

(6) That the failure of this Company to satisfactorily discharge any of the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall constitute a material breach of contract entitling Cuyahoga County to declare the contract in default and to exercise any and all applicable rights and remedies, including but not limited to, cancellation of the contract, termination of the contract, suspension and debarment from future contracting opportunities, and withholding and/or forfeiture of compensation due and owing on a contract.

(Original Signature of Company Representative Identified Above)

(Date)

SBE-1 RQ#

		SBE-2 RQ#
		RTICIPATION PLAN Subcontractor Proposed)
(A) TOTAL AMOUNT OF OVERA	ALL CONTRACT BID/PR	OPOSAL \$
CHECK ONE: SERVICE CONTRACT SUI	PPLY CONTRACT	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
BUSINESS NAME OF PRIME BIDDER		
ADDRESS		
СПТҮ	STATE	ZIP CODE
TELEPHONE ()	E-MAIL	
FIRM OWNED BY: MAJORITY	MINORITY (SPECIFY:)
(B) AMOUNT TO BE SUBCONTRACTED TO SBE:	\$	PERCENT OF TOTAL OVERALL CONTRACT BID [(B)/(A)]: %
SCOPE OF WORK PROVIDED BY SBE:		
PRIME BIDDER'S NAME (TYPE OR PRINT)	TITLE
PRIME BIDDER'S SIGNATURE		(DATE OF SIGNATURE)
	E SUBCONTRACTOR TO	BE UTILIZED FICE OF PROCUREMENT & DIVERSITY)
NAME OF SBE SUBCONTRACTOR		
ADDRESS		
		ZIP CODE
AREA CODE () TELEPHON	Е	
*******NOTE: SB	E MUST BE A COUNTY	CERTIFIED SBE******
	SUBCONTRACT WITH THE ABOVE I PPLY(IES) TO BE FURNISHED TO TH	NAMED BIDDER FOR THE ABOVE SAID SERVICE(S) OR HE COUNTY.
SBE SUBCONTRACTOR'S NAME		TITLE
(*	TYPE OR PRINT)	
SBE SUBCONTRACTOR'S SIGNATURE		
		(DATE OF SIGNATURE)

GOOD FAITH EFFORT CERTIFICATION

(Must be submitted with bids NOT meeting SBE goal or requesting full or partial waiver) Pursuant to the requirements for bidders under the SBE Program, and in consideration of the privilege to submit bids/proposals funded, in whole or in part, by Cuyahoga County,

I/We, () () of () Name(s) of Person(s) Signing Below Title(s) Company Name
attest that I/We have exercised the following good faith efforts in addition to my/our regular and customary solicitation process: (Check ALL that apply and complete as indicated)
I/We are requesting a FULL/PARTIAL WAIVER of the SBE Participation Goal for the following reason(s):
I/We are a non-profit agency and are requesting a FULL WAIVER of the SBE Participation Goal.
I/We have contacted OPD or website to obtain a list of SBEs appropriate to the bid/proposal.
I/We delivered written notice to available certified SBEs for each potential subcontracting or supply category in the contract AND all potential subcontractors or vendors which requested information on the contract.
I/We have provided all potential subcontractors or vendors with adequate information as to plans, specifications, relevant terms and conditions of the contract, bonding requirements, and the last date and time for receipt of price quotations.
I/We have attended the pre-bid/proposal conference.
I/We have provided a written explanation for rejection of any potential SBE subcontractor or vendor to OPD, where price competitiveness is not the reason for rejection.
I/We have actively solicited, through sending letters, emails or initiating personal contact, SBEs in all feasible and appropriate categories providing subcontracting opportunities for the contract under consideration.
I/We have utilized the services of available community organizations and associations, contractors' groups, and trade associations known to publicize contracting and procurement opportunities, for the purpose of obtaining assistance in the contacting and recruitment of SBEs for the Cuyahoga County contract under consideration.
I/We have conducted discussions with interested SBEs in good faith, and provided the same willingness to assist SBEs as has been extended to any other similarly situated subcontractor.
I/We have taken steps to ensure that all labor supervisors, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the obligation to maintain a non-discriminatory work environment, free of harassment, intimidation and coercion at all construction sites, offices and other facilities to which employees are

assigned to work.

PLEASE NOTE: Failure to properly complete and submit SBE-1, SBE-2 and SBE-3 (if applicable) will result in

SBE-3 Page 2 of 2

RO#

If applicable, identify all SBEs contacted to participate that declined or were not chosen:

l			
Name of Subcontractor	r/Vendor	Address	Phone
Name of Contact	Date of Offer to Participate	Bid Amount	Date Offer Declined
Reasons Given for Decli	ning		
·•	r/Vendor		
Name of Subcontracto	r/Vendor	Address	Phone
Name of Contact	Date of Offer to Participate	Bid Amount	Date Offer Declined
J	r/Vendor		
Name of Subcontracto	r/Vendor	Address	Phone
Name of Contact	Date of Offer to Participate	Bid Amount	Date Offer Declined
Reasons Given for Decli	ning		

(Make additional copies to extend list of SBE contacts if needed)

I/We affix my/our signature to this document to attest that I/We have exercised the above-indicated Good Faith Effort to promote SBE participation on the Bid/Proposal and Contract under consideration and to comply fully with the provisions of the Cuvahoga County Small Business Enterprise Program.

Signature (Must be Original)

bids/proposals being ruled non-responsive.

Printed/Typed Name of Company Official

Full Company Name

Area Code/ Phone Number

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

Mailing Address

City, State, Zip

Date

Title of Company Official

**** SAMPLE FORMS ****

COVENANT OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

(MUST be completed and submitted with ALL bids or proposals)

Know All Men By These Presents, that I/we, (John Doe),
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Name(s)	
(President, Owner), (ABC Company, Inc	_),
Title(s)	Name of Company	

(hereinafter "Company"), in consideration of the privilege to submit Bids/Proposals on contracts funded, in whole or in part, by Cuyahoga County, hereby consents, covenants and agrees as follows:

(1) No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, or otherwise discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national origin or gender in connection with any Bid/Proposal submitted to Cuyahoga County or the performance of any contract resulting from;

(2) That it is and shall be the policy of this Company to provide equal opportunity to all business persons seeking to contact or otherwise interested in contracting with this Company, including various eligible Small Business Enterprises (hereinafter "SBEs");

(3) In connection herewith, I/We acknowledge and warrant that this Company has been made aware of, understands and agrees to make a Good Faith Effort to solicit SBEs to do business with this Company;

(4) That the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be continuing in nature and shall remain in full force and effect without interruption;

(5) That the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be and are hereby deemed to be made a part of, and incorporated by reference into, any contract or portion thereof which this Company may hereafter obtain; and

(6) That the failure of this Company to satisfactorily discharge any of the Covenant of Non-Discrimination as made and set forth herein shall constitute a material breach of contract entitling Cuyahoga County to declare the contract in default and to exercise any and all applicable rights and remedies, including but not limited to, cancellation of the contract, termination of the contract, suspension and debarment from future contracting opportunities, and withholding and/or forfeiture of compensation due and owing on a contract.

<u>John Doe</u>

<u>_February 1, 2008</u>

(Original Signature of Company Representative Identified Above)

(Date)

SBE SUBCONTRACTO	OR PARTICIPATION P	LAN SBE-2
(MUST be submitted for EA	CH SBE Subcontractor Prop	oosed) RQ# XXXXX
(A) Total Amount of Overall Cont	ract Bid/Proposal <u>\$500,00</u>	00
Check One:		
Service Contract	Supply Contract	Construction Contract X
Business Name of Prime Bidder	ABC Company, Inc.	
Address <u>111 Main Street</u>		
City Anywhere	State Ohio	Zip Code 44000
Telephone (216) 555-5555	E-Mail abccomp	any@yahoo.com
Firm Owned by: X Majority	Minority (specify:) Female
(B) Amount to be Subcontracted to SBE:	Percent of To Overall Cont \$ 100,000 [(B)/(A)]:	tract Bid%
Scope of Work Provided By SBE:	Electrical Contracting Serv	
Prime Bidder's Name: John Doe (Type or Pri	nt)	Title: <u>President/Owner</u>
Prime Bidder's Signature: John Do	ie	Date: February 1, 2008
	BE SUBCONTRACTOR TO st be certified by the Cuyahoga County Office of ric Company	
Address:456 Main Street, Anywh	nere, OH 44000	
City Anywhere	State Ohio	Zip Code _44000
Area Code (216) Telephone	555-5551	
*******NOTE:	SBE MUST BE A COUNT	ΓY CERTIFIED SBE******
The undersigned herewith agrees to	subcontract with the above	named bidder for the above said service

services(s) or supply(ies) to be furnished to the County.

SBE Subcontractor's Name: Tom Edison	Title:	President/Owner
(Type or Print)	·	
Prime Bidder's Signature: Jom Edison	Date:	January 23, 2008
		(Date of Signature)

SBE-3 Page 1 of 2 RQ# XXXXX

GOOD FAITH EFFORT CERTIFICATION

(Must be submitted with bids NOT meeting SBE goal or requesting full or partial waiver) Pursuant to the requirements for bidders under the SBE Program, and in consideration of the privilege to submit bids/proposals funded, in whole or in part, by Cuyahoga County,

I/We,	,(John Doe),(),(),(),(President, Owner	_) of (<u>ABC</u> Company Name		<u>;)</u>	Name(s) of Person(s)
	attest that I/We have exercised customary solicitation process:					ny/our regular and
X	I/We are requesting a FULL/PARTIAL <u>a partial waiver of the SBE Goal as</u> <u>SBE to meet the additional 5% req</u>	s we were only able	-		-	
	I/We are a non-profit agency and a	e requesting a FU	LL WAIVER	of the SBE Pa	rticipation	Goal.

- x I/We have contacted OPD or website to obtain a list of SBEs appropriate to the bid/proposal.
- X I/We delivered written notice to available certified SBEs for each potential subcontracting or supply category in the contract AND all potential subcontractors or vendors which requested information on the contract.
- x I/We have provided all potential subcontractors or vendors with adequate information as to plans, specifications, relevant terms and conditions of the contract, bonding requirements, and the last date and time for receipt of price quotations.
- x I/We have attended the pre-bid/proposal conference.
- x I/We have provided a written explanation for rejection of any potential SBE subcontractor or vendor to OPD, where price competitiveness is not the reason for rejection.
- x I/We have actively solicited, through sending letters, emails or initiating personal contact, SBEs in all feasible and appropriate categories providing subcontracting opportunities for the contract under consideration.
- x I/We have utilized the services of available community organizations and associations, contractors' groups, and trade associations known to publicize contracting and procurement opportunities, for the purpose of obtaining assistance in the contacting and recruitment of SBEs for the Cuyahoga County contract under consideration.
- x I/We have conducted discussions with interested SBEs in good faith, and provided the same willingness to assist SBEs as has been extended to any other similarly situated subcontractor.
- x I/We have taken steps to ensure that all labor supervisors, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the obligation to maintain a non-discriminatory work environment, free of harassment, intimidation and coercion at all construction sites, offices and other facilities to which employees are assigned to work.

SBE-3

Page 2 of 2

If applicable, identify all	SBEs contacted to partici	ipate that declined or were no	ot chosen:	RQ# XXXXX
1. Perfect Plumbing Com	ipany 222 Mc	ain Street, Anywhere, OH 4		<u>3</u>
Name of Subcontractor		Address	Phone T	
Paul Perfect Name of Contact	<u>January 15, 2008</u> _ Date of Offer to Participate	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount	January 18, 2008 Date Offer Decline	d
	ning <u>Has other comm</u>	nitments at this time and is	<u>unable to work with</u>	
<u>us.</u>				
2. <u>Dan's DuctWork Comp</u> Name of Subcontractor	<u>Dany</u> <u>333 Mai</u>	in Street, Anywhere, OH 44 Address	1000_216-555-5554 Phone	
Dan Handy	January 18, 2008_	\$25,000 (5%)	January 19, 2008	
Name of Contact	Date of Offer to Participate	Bid Amount	Date Offer Decline	d
Reasons Given for Declin business.		providing the required sub	-contracting service	as part of its
3. Dave's Landscapes In	c <u>444 Main</u>	Street, Anywhere, OH 440 Address	000_216-555-5556 Phone	
Name of Subcontractor <u>Dave Curbappeal</u> Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin	January 16, 2008 Date of Offer to Participate	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline	
Name of Subcontractor <u>Dave Curbappeal</u> Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u>	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with	
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bid	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of to	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bid	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus Image: Contact I/We affix my/our sign <	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bid	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of to John Doe Printed/Typed Name	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an Program. Date	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of to John Doe Printed/Typed Name	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>Aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-inder consideration an Program. Date ner	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of t John Doe Printed/Typed Name	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>Aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an Program. Date	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus Image: Contact I/We affix my/our sign Image: Contact I/Image: Contact Image: Contact I/Image: Contact Image: Contact I/Image: Contact Image: Contact Image: Contact	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount Attents at this time and is ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un amall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u> Title of	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-inder consideration an Program. Date ner	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declin us. I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of to John Doe Printed/Typed Name	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>Aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-inder consideration an Program. Date ner	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus. Identified to the contact of the conta	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u> Title of <u>111 Main Street</u>	<u>January 17, 2008</u> Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an Program. Date <u>ner</u> of Company Official Mailing Address	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus. I/We affix my/our sign I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE with the provisions of the provisions of the provisions of the printed/Typed Name I/International Statement Statemen	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount Attents at this time and is ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un amall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u> Title of	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline Unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-inder consideration an Program. Date ner of Company Official Mailing Address 1 44000	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus. Identified to the context of the conte	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u> Title of <u>111 Main Street</u>	<u>January 17, 2008</u> Date Offer Decline unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-in- ider consideration an Program. Date <u>ner</u> of Company Official Mailing Address	d dicated Good Faith
Name of Subcontractor Dave Curbappeal Name of Contact Reasons Given for Declinus Image: Contact I/We affix my/our sign Effort to promote SBE With the provisions of the provisions of the provisions of the printed/Typed Name Image: Company, Inc. John Doe Signature (Must be Original) ABC Company, Inc. Full Company Name 216-555-5555 Contact	<u>January 16, 2008</u> Date of Offer to Participate ning <u>Has other comm</u> (Make additional cop ature to this document to participation on the Bio he Cuyahoga County S	<u>\$25,000 (5%)</u> Bid Amount <u>aitments at this time and is</u> ies to extend list of SBE cont to attest that I/We have exe d/Proposal and Contract un mall Business Enterprise F <u>February 1, 2008</u> <u>President, Ow</u> Title of <u>111 Main Street</u>	January 17, 2008 Date Offer Decline Unable to work with acts if needed) ercised the above-inder consideration an Program. Date ner of Company Official Mailing Address H 44000 City, State, Zip	d dicated Good Faith

responsive.